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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

CANDACE MOYER, individually and on behalf of
all others similarly situated,

Civil Action No.:
Plaintiff,
-against- CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
PATENAUDE & FELIX, A.P.C., DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL
Defendant.

Plaintiff, CANDACE MOYER (hereinafter, “Plaintiff”), a Pennsylvania resident, brings
this Class Action Complaint by and through the undersigned attorneys, Marcus & Zelman, LLC,
against Defendant PATENAUDE & FELIX, A.P.C. (hereinafter, “Defendant”) individually and
on behalf of all others similarly situated, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, based upon information and belief of Plaintiff’s counsel, except for allegations

specifically pertaining to Plaintiff, which are based upon Plaintiff’s personal knowledge.

INTRODUCTION/PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. Congress enacted the FDCPA in 1977 in response to the “abundant evidence of the use of
abusive, deceptive, and unfair debt collection practices by many debt collectors.” 15 U.S.C.
§ 1692(a). At that time, Congress was concerned that “abusive debt collection practices
contribute to the number of personal bankruptcies, to material instability, to the loss of
jobs, and to invasions of individual privacy.” Id. Congress concluded that “existing laws .
. . [we]re inadequate to protect consumers,” and that “the effective collection of debts”

does not require “misrepresentation or other abusive debt collection practices.” 15 U.S.C.
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§§ 1692(b) & (c).

. Congress explained that the purpose of the Act was not only to eliminate abusive debt
collection practices, but also to “insure that those debt collectors who refrain from using
abusive debt collection practices are not competitively disadvantaged.” Id. § 1692(e). After
determining that the existing consumer protection laws were inadequate, id. § 1692(b),
Congress gave consumers a private cause of action against debt collectors who fail to
comply with the Act. Id. § 1692k.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

. The Court has jurisdiction over this class action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, 15 U.S.C. § 1692
et seq. and 28 U.S.C. § 2201. If applicable, the Court also has pendent jurisdiction over
the state law claims in this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

. Venue is proper in this judicial district pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(2).

NATURE OF THE ACTION

. Plaintiff brings this action on behalf of a class of Pennsylvania consumers under § 1692
et seq. of Title 15 of the United States Code, commonly referred to as the Fair Debt
Collections Practices Act (“FDCPA”), and

. Plaintiff is seeking damages, and declaratory and injunctive relief.

PARTIES

. Plaintiff is a natural person and a resident of the State of Pennsylvania and is a “Consumer”
as defined by 15 U.S.C. §1692(a)(3).

. Defendant Law Offices of Patenaude & Felix, A.P.C. is a law firm with its principal office
located at 4545 Murphy Canyon Road, 3™ Floor, San Diego, California 92123.

. Upon information and belief, Defendant is a company that uses the mail, telephone, or
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facsimile in a business the principal purpose of which is the collection of debts, or that
regularly collects or attempts to collect debts alleged to be due another.

Defendant is a “debt collector,” as defined under the FDCPA under 15 U.S.C. § 1692a(6).

ALLEGATIONS OF FACT

Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs
numbered above herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length
herein.

Some time prior to March 2, 2018, an obligation was allegedly incurred to SYNCHRONY
BANK.

The SYNCHRONY BANK obligation arose out of a transaction in which money, property,
insurance or services, which are the subject of the transaction, are primarily for personal,
family or household purposes.

The alleged SYNCHRONY BANK obligation is a "debt" as defined by 15 U.S.C.§
1692a(5).

SYNCHRONY BANK is a "creditor" as defined by 15 U.S.C.§ 1692a(4).

SYNCHRONY BANK contracted the Defendant to collect the alleged debt.

Defendant is a company that uses mail, telephone or facsimile in a business the principal
purpose of which is the collection of debts, or that regularly collects or attempts to collect
debts incurred or alleged to have been incurred for personal, family or household purposes
on behalf of creditors.

On or about March 2, 2018, Defendant sent to the Plaintiff a collection letter (the “Letter”)
regarding the alleged debt owed to SYNCHRONY BANK. See Exhibit A.

Upon information and belief, the Letter was the first communication from the Defendant
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to the Plaintiff with regards to the SYNCHRONY BANK debt.
Plaintiff received the letter and read it.
The Letter states in part:
“If you wish to eliminate further collection action, please contact us at 800-832-7675
ext. 8500.”
The Letter further states:
“Unless you notify us within THIRTY (30) days after receiving this notice that you
dispute the validity of this debt, or any portion thereof, this office will assume this debt
is valid.”
Plaintiff, as would any least sophisticated consumer, read the above statements and
believed that she was able to legally eliminate further collection actions over the phone.
Pursuant to the FDCPA, there are several ways for a consumer to get a debt collector to
cease further collection efforts:
a. Notify debt collector in writing that consumer refuses to pay the debt or wishes the
debt collector to cease further communications pursuant to 15 U.S.C. 1692¢(c¢);
b. Notify debt collector in writing within the validation period that consumer disputes
the debt pursuant to 15 U.S.C 1692g(b)
By falsely implying that Plaintiff had a legally effective right to have collection efforts
cease by calling, Defendant overshadowed Plaintift’s validation rights and misled her as to
her statutory rights.
As a result of the Defendant’s violations of the FDCPA, the Plaintiff was harmed. Plaintiff
was r harmed by being subjected to deceptive and misleading collection practices, from

which she had a substantive right to be free, by being subject to the increased risk that she
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would fail to effectively dispute her debt or effectively request that collection efforts cease,
and by being deprived of information to which she was statutorily entitled to receive.
Defendant’s actions as described herein are part of a pattern and practice used to collect
consumer debts.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

Plaintiffs bring this claim on behalf of the following case, pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(a)
and 23(b)(3).

The Class consists of (a) all individuals with addresses in Pennsylvania (b) to whom
Defendant (c) sent an initial collection letter attempting to collect a consumer debt owed
to Synchrony Bank (d) containing language “If you wish to eliminate further collection
action, please contact us at 800-832-7675” (e) which letter was sent on or after a date one
year prior to the filing of this action and on or before a date 21 days after the filing of this
action.

The identities of all class members are readily ascertainable from the records of Defendant
and those companies and entities on whose behalf they attempt to collect debts.

Excluded from the Plaintiff Class are the Defendant and all officers, members, partners,
managers, directors, and employees of the Defendant and their respective immediate
families, and legal counsel for all parties to this action and all members of their immediate
families.

There are questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff Class, which common issues
predominate over any issues involving only individual class members. The principal issue
is whether the Defendant’s written communications to consumers, in the forms attached as

Exhibits A, violate 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692e and 1692g.
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33. The Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the class members, as all are based upon the same facts
and legal theories.

34. The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the Plaintiff Class defined
in this complaint. The Plaintiff has retained counsel with experience in handling consumer
lawsuits, complex legal issues, and class actions, and neither the Plaintiff nor Plaintiff’s
attorneys have any interests, which might cause them not to vigorously pursue this action.

35. This action has been brought, and may properly be maintained, as a class action pursuant
to the provisions of Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure because there is a well-
defined community interest in the litigation:

(a) Numerosity: The Plaintiff is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that
the Plaintiff Class defined above is so numerous that joinder of all members would
be impractical.

(b) Common Questions Predominate: Common questions of law and fact exist as to

all members of the Plaintiff Class and those questions predominate over any
questions or issues involving only individual class members. The principal issue is
whether the Defendant’s written communications to consumers, in the forms
attached as Exhibit A, violate 15 U.S.C. §§ 1692¢ and 1692g.

(©) Typicality: The Plaintiff’s claims are typical of the claims of the class members.
The Plaintiff and all members of the Plaintiff Class have claims arising out of the
Defendant’s common uniform course of conduct complained of herein.

(d) Adequacy: The Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the class
members insofar as Plaintiff has no interests that are adverse to the absent class

members. The Plaintiff is committed to vigorously litigating this matter. Plaintiff
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has also retained counsel experienced in handling consumer lawsuits, complex
legal issues, and class actions. Neither the Plaintiff nor Plaintiff’s counsel have any
interests which might cause them not to vigorously pursue the instant class action
lawsuit.

(e) Superiority: A class action is superior to the other available means for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy because individual joinder of all members
would be impracticable. Class action treatment will permit a large number of
similarly situated persons to prosecute their common claims in a single forum
efficiently and without unnecessary duplication of effort and expense that
individual actions would engender.

36. Certification of a class under Rule 23(b)(3) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure is also
appropriate in that the questions of law and fact common to members of the Plaintiff Class
predominate over any questions affecting an individual member, and a class action is
superior to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of the
controversy.

37. Depending on the outcome of further investigation and discovery, Plaintiff may, at the time
of class certification motion, seek to certify a class(es) only as to particular issues pursuant

to Fed. R. Civ. P. 23(c)(4).

COUNT1I

VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
15 U.S.C. §1692¢ et seq.

38. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs above
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herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length herein.
Defendant’s debt collection efforts attempted and/or directed towards the Plaintiff violated
various provisions of the FDCPA, including but not limited to 15 U.S.C. § 1692e, 1692¢(2),
1692¢(5) and 1692¢(10).
Pursuant to Section 15 U.S.C. §1692¢ of the FDCPA, a debt collector may not use any
false, deceptive, or misleading representation or means in connection with the collection
of any debt.
The Defendant violated said provision by:

a. Using false representations and/or deceptive means to collect or attempt to collect

any debt in violation of 15 U.S.C. §1692¢(10).

By reason thereof, Defendant is liable to Plaintiff for judgment that Defendant’s conduct
violated Section 1692¢ et seq. of the FDCPA, actual damages, statutory damages, costs and

attorneys’ fees.

COUNT I

VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR DEBT COLLECTION PRACTICES ACT
15 U.S.C. §1692¢g et seq.

. Plaintiff repeats, reiterates and incorporates the allegations contained in paragraphs above

herein with the same force and effect as if the same were set forth at length herein.
Defendant’s debt collection efforts attempted and/or directed towards the Plaintiff violated
various provisions of the FDCPA, including but not limited to 15 U.S.C. § 1692g.
The Defendant violated said section by:

e Overshadowing the validation notice in violation of § 1692g(b).

By reason thereof, Defendant is liable to Plaintiff for judgment that Defendant's conduct



Case 5:18-cv-04711-JFL Document 1 Filed 10/30/18 Page 9 of 9

violated Section 1692g et seq. of the FDCPA, actual damages, statutory damages, costs
and attorneys’ fees.

DEMAND FOR TRIAL BY JURY

47. Pursuant to Rule 38 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff hereby requests a

trial by jury on all issues so triable.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant as follows:

(a) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class statutory damages;

(b) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class actual damages;

(©) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class costs of this Action, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees and expenses;

(d) Awarding pre-judgment interest and post-judgment interest; and

(e) Awarding Plaintiff and the Class such other and further relief as this Court

may deem just and proper.

Dated: October 22, 2018

By: /s/ Ari Marcus
Ari Marcus, Esq.
MARCUS & ZELMAN, LLC
701 Cookman Avenue, Suite 300
Asbury Park, New Jersey 07712
(732) 695-3282 telephone
(732) 298-6256 facsimile
Ari(@marcuszelman.com
Attorney for Plaintiff
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FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

DESIGNATION FORM

(to be used by counsel or pro se plaintiff to indicate the category of the case for the purpose of assignment to the appropriate calendar)

Address of Plaintiff: 3207 Oak Street, Reading, PA 19605

Address of Defendant: 4545 Murphy Canyon Road, 3rd Floor, San Diego, CA 92123

Place of Accident, Incident or Transaction: Readmgv PA
RELATED CASE, IF ANY:
Case Number: Judge: Date Terminated:

Civil cases are deemed related when Yes is answered to any of the following questions:

1. Is this case related to property included in an earlier numbered suit pending or within one year Yes D No
previously terminated action in this court?

2. Does this case involve the same issue of fact or grow out of the same transaction as a prior suit Yes I:' No
pending or within one year previously terminated action in this court?

3. Does this case involve the validity or infringement of a patent already in suit or any earlier Yes l:l No
numbered case pending or within one year previously terminated action of this court?

4. Ts this case a second or successive habeas corpus, social security appeal, or pro se civil rights Yes D No
case filed by the same individual?

1 certify that, to my knowledge, the within case [ is / [5] is not related to any case now pending or within one year previously terminated action in

this court except as noted above.

Attorney-at-Law / Pro Se Plaintiff’ Attorney 1.D. # (if applicable)

CIVIL: (Place a \ in one category only)
Federal Question Cases: Diversity Jurisdiction Cases:

Indemnity Contract, Marine Contract, and All Other Contracts Insurance Contract and Other Contracts

FELA Airplane Personal Injury

Jones Act-Personal Injury Assault, Defamation

Antitrust Marine Personal Injury

Patent Motor Vehicle Personal Injury
Labor-Management Relations Other Personal Injury (Please specify):
Civil Rights Products Liability

Habeas Corpus
Securities Act(s) Cases

Products Liability — Asbestos
All other Diversity Cases
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0. Social Security Review Cases (Please specify):
1. All other Federal Question Cases
(Please specify): FDCPA
ARBITRATION CERTIFICATION
(The effect of this certification is to remove the case from eligibility for arbitration.)
I, An M arcus , counsel of record or pro se plaintiff, do hereby certify:

- Pursuant to Local Civil Rule 53.2, § 3(c) (2), that to the best of my knowledge and belief, the damages recoverable in this civil action case
exceed the sum of $150,000.00 exclusive of interest and costs:

D Relief other than monetary damages is sought.

e 10/22/2018 A

Attorney-at-Law / Pro Se Plaintiff’ Attorney 1.D. # (if applicable)

NOTE: A trial de novo will be a trial by jury only if there has been compliance with F.R.C.P. 38.

Civ. 609 (5/2018)




Case 5:18-cv-04711-JFL Document 1-3 Filed 10/30/18 Page 1 of 2

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF PENNSYLVANIA

CASE MANAGEMENT TRACK DESIGNATION FORM

CANDACE MOYER, individually and on : CIVIL ACTION
behalf of all others similarly situated, :

\A
PATENAUDE & FELIX, A.P.C,, NO.

In accordance with the Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan of this court, counsel for
plaintiff shall complete a Case Management Track Designation Form in all civil cases at the time of
filing the complaint and serve a copy on all defendants. (See § 1:03 of the plan set forth on the reverse
side of this form.) In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on
the plaintiff and all other parties, a Case Management Track Designation Form specifying the track

to which that defendant believes the case should be assigned.
SELECT ONE OF THE FOLLOWING CASE MANAGEMENT TRACKS:
(a) Habeas Corpus — Cases brought under 28 U.S.C. § 2241 through § 2255.

(b) Social Security - Cases requesting review of a decision of the Secretary of Health
and Human Services denying plaintiff Social Security Benefits.

(c) Arbitration — Cases required to be designated for arbitration under Local Civil Rule 53.2.

(d) Asbestos — Cases involving claims for personal injury or property damage from
exposure to asbestos.

(e) Special Management — Cases that do not fall into tracks (a) through (d) that are
commonly referred to as complex and that need special or intense management by
the court. (See reverse side of this form for a detailed explanation of special
management cases.)

(f) Standard Management — Cases that do not fall into any one of the other tracks.

October 22, 2018 Ari Marcus Plaintiff, Candace Moyer

()

()
()

()

()
(x)

Date Attorney-at-law Attorney for
732.695.3282 732.298.6256 ari@marcuszelman.com

T_elephone FAX Number E-Mail Address

(Civ. 660) 10/02
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Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan
Section 1:03 - Assignment to 2 Management Track

(a) The clerk of court will assign cases to tracks (a) through (d) based on the initial pleading.

(b) In all cases not appropriate for assignment by the clerk of court to tracks (a) through (d), the
plaintiff shall submit to the clerk of court and serve with the complaint on all defendants a case management
track designation form specifying that the plaintiff believes the case requires Standard Management or
Special Management. In the event that a defendant does not agree with the plaintiff regarding said
designation, that defendant shall, with its first appearance, submit to the clerk of court and serve on the
plamtiff and all other parties, a case management track designation form specifying the track to which that
defendant believes the case should be assigned.

(c) The court may, on its own initiative or upon the request of any party, change the track
assignment of any case at any time.

(d) Nothing in this Plan is intended to abrogate or limit a judicial officer's authority in any case
pending before that judicial officer, to direct pretrial and trial proceedings that are more stringent than those
of the Plan and that are designed to accomplish cost and delay reduction.

(e) Nothing in this Plan is intended to supersede Local Civil Rules 40.1 and 72.1, or the
procedure for random assignment of Habeas Corpus and Social Security cases referred to magistrate judges
of the court.

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT CASE ASSIGNMENTS
(See §1.02 (e) Management Track Definitions of the
Civil Justice Expense and Delay Reduction Plan)

Special Management cases will usually include that class of cases commonly referred to as "complex
litigation" as that term has been used in the Manuals for Complex Litigation. The first manual was prepared
in 1969 and the Manual for Complex Litigation Second, MCL 2d was prepared in 1985. This term is
intended to include cases that present unusual problems and require extraordinary treatment. See §0.1 of the
first manual. Cases may require special or intense management by the court due to one or more of the
following factors: (1) large number of parties; (2) large number of claims or defenses; (3) complex factual
issues; (4) large volume of evidence; (5) problems locating or preserving evidence; (6) extensive discovery;
(7) exceptionally long time needed to prepare for disposition; (8) decision needed within an exceptionally
short time; and (9) need to decide preliminary issues before final disposition. It may include two or more
related cases. Complex litigation typically includes such cases as antitrust cases; cases involving a large
number of parties or an unincorporated association of large membership; cases involving requests for
injunctive relief affecting the operation of large business entities; patent cases; copyright and trademark
cases; common disaster cases such as those arising from aircraft crashes or marine disasters; actions brought
by individual stockholders; stockholder's derivative and stockholder's representative actions; class actions or
potential class actions; and other civil (and criminal) cases involving unusual multiplicity or complexity of
factual issues. See §0.22 of the first Manual for Complex Litigation and Manual for Complex Litigation
Second, Chapter 33.
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Issued as: Sam's Club®PersonalCredit
Account Number: X0 X KX X 4485
Our File Number: NGRSV

Balance Due: $9,941.65

Dear Candace Moyer:

Please be advised that the above-referenced debt has been assigned to this firm to initiate collection efforts
‘o regarding your delinquent outstanding balance to our client. if you wish to eliminate furt)er collection action,
9B please contact us at 800-832-7675 ext. 8500. ; :

“ 3 Unless you notify this office within THIRTY (30) days of receiving this notice that you lispute the validity of this
" debt, or any portion thereof, this office will assume this debt is valid.

If vou notify this office in writing within THIRTY (30) days of receiving this notice that this debt, or any portion
thereof, is disputed, this office will obtain verification of the debt, or a copy of a judgme it against you, and mail
you a copy of such verification or judgment. Further, if you make a written request upor. this office within
THIRTY (30) days of receiving this notice, this office will provide you with the name ar d address of the original
creditor, if different from the current creditor.

This is an attempt to collect a debt and any information obtained will be used for that pupose.

| ——— E N — . -
- - o A e o to—  Fo—— o o e P e e 14 i g —— 4 el | g Rl ! Sl A S L nioliiis

Very truly yours,
Law Office of Patenaude & Felix

THIS COMMUNICATION IS FROM A DEBT COLLECTOR
This is an attempt to collect s debt, and any iuformation obtained will be used for that purpase.

PRPFOIB P&F Pile No. 1821008
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This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Class Action: Patenaude & Felix Misrepresented Debt Dispute Requirementsin L etter
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